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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,
-'agziinst— | COMPLAINT
RAJAT K. GUPTA and _ , ’ T S
RAJ RAJARATNAM, : -. o : - ECF CASE
. Defendanté. . | |

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Conimissi_on (“Comfnissibn”), 'fdf its Complaint
agaihsf defendants Rajat K. Gﬁpta (“Gil_pté”)_ and Raj Raj aratnarﬁ (f‘Ré.j aratnam” and_ -
- together with Gupta, the “Deferidants”), alléges as follows: |
o SUMMARY
1. This matfer édncems an extensive insider trading scheme ’co_nduc'ted by
' Gupta and Raj aratnam. On multiple occasioﬁs, Gﬁpta disclosed material nonpu'blic:
informaﬁon that he obtained in the course of hlS dutiesleas .a membel; of the Boards of
Diréctbrs of The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. (“Goldman Sachs”) ;ind Tﬁe.Procter &
Gamble-Company (“Procter & Gamble”) to Rajaratnam, the founder and Mahaging '
Genefal Partner of the hedge fund investment manager naméd Galieon Management, LP

(“Galleon™). Rajaratnam, in turn, either caﬁséd the Galleon hedge funds that he managed -



to trade on the basis of material nonpublic infermation, or passed the‘ inferm_ation onto
others at Galleon who caused other Galleon hedge funds to trade on the basis of the |
material nonpul')'li‘c- information. |
2. . Specifically, Gupta disclosed to Rajaratﬁam material nonpublic
infonnatiOn cOncér_ning Berkshire Hathaway Inc’s (“Berkshire™) $5 billion iﬁvestment-in
Goldman Sachs before it was publicly announced on September 23, 2008. Gupta also
provided to Raj eratnam material non-public information concerning Goldman Sachs’s
financial reéul_ts for both the secoﬁd and fourtthu_-arte‘rs of -2008. Rajaratnam caused the
varioué,_Galleon hedge funds that he ﬁlanaged to trade Ven the basis of material ﬁonpublic
infdmiaﬁen, generatiﬁg illicit profits and l_ess avoidance ef more than $23 fnillioh_. In
'additiOn, Gupta diselosed to 'Raj aratnam materieiI nenpublic inforniétion conceming
Procter :&‘_Gémble'”s financial results for the quarter endi_ng December 2008. Raj eramam
relayed.thi's infenﬁatien to otﬁers at Galleon, who in turn caused Gelieoh fun&s to trade
on basis Qf that information, generating illicit pfoﬁts of over $570,000. |
' 3. Ih earrying oﬁt the insider trading scheme, Rajaratnam informed certain',
co-coﬁspirators that he had‘ obtained nenpublic infonnation c()ncerning Gol‘drhan Sachs
| frem' his source.en Goldman’s Board of D;ireetofs. Rajaratnam also infoﬁhed at least one o
»other-co-conépirator'that he obtaihed nonpublic information concerning Procter &
Gamble from his source oﬁ Proeter & Gamble’s B'oa'rd-'(')f Direct_ors.' ‘Gupta, whe-was
' Rajaratnefn’s source on beth compénies’ Boards, kﬁowingly or 'recklessly disclosed
meterial nenpublic information to Rajaratnam fof use 1n trading ectivities. Raj ératnam,-
. fof his part, was aware of fhe fact that Gupta was breaehihg _his obligations to maintain

the confidentiality of that information by disclosihg itto Raj aratnam.



4. During.fhe relevant period, Gupta had a variety of busine‘ss dealings with -
Rajaratnam and stood to benefit fr_orh his relationship with Rajaratnam. In addition, |
- Gupta was an investor in, and a director of, G_alleon’s GB Voyager Multi,-S‘trategy Fund
SPC, Ltd:, a master’ fund with assets that weré inVested iﬁ numerous Galleon .h'edg'e funds,
including the Galleon’funds that traded — and hahd_somely profited — based on Gupfa’s
illegal tips. | |

'NATURE OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND RELIEF SOUGHT :

-5, The Commission Brings this acti(_)n‘ pmsuaﬁt-to the authority conferred
upon it by Section 20(b) of fhe Securities Acf of 1933‘_ (“Securities Act”) tlS U.‘IS.C. §
77t(i>)] an'd_ S'ection 21(d) of the secﬁﬁties Exchangg Act_bf 1934 (“Ex_chaﬁgé Act”) [15
USC§ 78u(d)j. -Thé ComrﬁfsSioh sééké pcnnaneht injunctions égainSt the Defen‘daht‘s, .
venjo‘ini.ng.._z, each ft.or.n‘ engaging in the traﬂsaétions, .a’cts;,' practiées,‘ and courses of .bﬁSiness |
' aileged in thls Complaiht; diégorgément, jbintly and severglly,' of all trading profits or

losses a_i(oided from the unlawful insider ttadiﬁg activity s_ét forth in this C'ompléint,‘
tOééfher with pfejudgniérit infere’st; and civil penalties pursuant tol Séctibn 21A of the |
Exchange ‘Act [1-5.U.S'.Cl-. § 78u—i] undcf the Insider Trading and Sééurities Fral‘xd’
Enforceméﬁt-Act of 1988, In addition, purSuaﬁg to Section 20(¢) of the Securities Act [15
US.C. § 7.7t.(e)] and Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchaﬁge Act[15U.S.C. § 7 8u(d)(2)]l, the
_.Commi_ssi_on’ sé_el__(s an ofder béﬁing Gubta from écting as an officer or director of any
issuer that has a class of secuﬁ£iés regist_eredbpursuan'-c to Section 12-of fhe‘- Exéhange Act
15 U;S.C. § 781] or that is required to file reports pursuant to Section ls(d) of fhe |
_ Exchaﬁge Act[15U.S.C. § 780(djj, and an ofder .enjdinihg Gupta from associating with

‘any broker, dealer or investment adviser. The Commission also seeks any other relief the



Court may deem appropriate pursuant to Section'21(d)(5) of th‘e'Exchange Act [15 U.S.C.

§ 78u(d)(5)]-

- JURISDICTION AND VENUE

- 6. This Court has Jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 20(b),

N 20(d), and 22(a) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 7,7t(b),'77't(d_),' and 77v(a)] and

Sections 21(d), 21(e), and 27 of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d), 78ue), and
78aa). | |
7. Venuelics in this Court pursuant to Sections 20(b) and 22(a) of the

Securities Act [15 US.C. §8§ 77t(b) and 77v(a)], and Secti'ons 21(d), 21A, and 27 of the

| Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d), 78u-1, and 78aa]. Certain of the acts, practices,

 transactions, and courses of business alleged in this Complaint occurred within the

Southern District of New York. For exarhple; Galleon and Rajaratnam were based in and

~ had 6fﬁces in New York, New York, where Rajsaratnam resides. Trades made on the

basis of the i_nsider tips alleged herein were made by traders working in New York, New

York. In addition, many of the _commmlicatiohs in fuﬁhe_fance of the insider trading

alleged herein were méde from, to, or wi_thihNew York, New York.



DEFENDANTS

8. Gupta, age 62; residés in Westport, Connecticut. ‘Frorr'l Nbvember 2006
through May 2010, Gupta was a member of Goldman Sachs’s Board of Directors. '
During his tenure on Goldman Sachs’s B(;ard,_ Gupta sefved as a member of the Board’s
Audit Committee, COrborate Governance and Nominating Committee, and Cpmpensation
Con’imitteé. Duﬁng the relevant time period, Gupta was a member of Procter &

Gamble’s Board of Directors, and served on the Board’s Audit Committee and its -

- Innovation and Technolo'gy Committee. During the relevant time period, Gupta served
- on the Boards of Directors of several other public companies, and was then and is now

-affiliated with other entities. Gupta is a Founding Partner-and former Chairman_ of New

Silk.Route Partners LLC (“New Silk Route”), an investment firm that was origihally '
called Taj Capital Partners and was founded by‘ Gupta, Rajaratnam, arid_,other.s in 2006.

Gupta holds a Bache_l,or of Technology degree in mechanical engineering from the Indian ,

Institute of Technology and an MBA from Harvard_BusinesS- School.

9. Rajaratnam, age 54, resides in New York, New York. Rajaratnam is the

' foundef and a Managing General Partner of Galleon. During the period relevant to the_

allleg.ations- in this Complaint, Rajaratnam either served as Portfolio Manager of the

| Gall'eo’n hedge funds that_ engaged in the illicit trading'desoribed herein, or conveyed the

information he received 'to others at Galleon, who traded on the basis of the information.
Prior to founding Galleon, Rajaratnam worked at Needham & Co., a registered broker-
dealer, fQ'r_ 11 years, at which time he held Seﬁ_es 7 and Series 24 securities licenses.

Raj aratnam obta_ined a degree from the University of Sussex, England, in 1.980, and an

 MBA in Finance from the Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania in 1983.



10.  Gupta and Raj ara_tnam had multiple business dealings sﬁanning many-
years, including, among others: Gupta invested a total of more than $2 million in two.of
Galleon’s offshore hedge funds, “Captains” and “Buccaneers;” Rajaratnam and-Gapta
both inyested many raillions of dollars in the highly leveraged GB- Voyager Multi-
Strate'_g'y Fund venture deecribed above, with Rajaratnam providing the. vast ﬁlajofity of
the equity eapital (%40 million) and Gupta viewing the venture as a eossible platform fof

further joint business with Rajaratnam; Gupta and Raj aratnam formed an investment fund

- named the “Voyager Special Opportunity Fund” and jointly solicited a number of

prominent South Asian global business leaders to invest in the fund; Gupta and

| Rajaratnam, along with two other'principals,'org-anjzed Taj Capital Partners, the New

Silk Route predecessor, and solicited investors for that fund; and ‘-Raj aratnam was one of

-  the original co-founders of New Silk Route and agreed to provide $50 million —

approximately one-third — of the total management—level capital commitment of the o
contemplated enterprise.

RELEVANT INDIVIDUALS AND ENTITIES

11.  Berkshireis a,Delaware corpo'ratioh_ headquartered in Omaha, 'Nebraska. |

- Berkshire is-a holding company that owns subsidiaries engaged in many b\isine_-SS
aetiviti_es. Berkshire?s secuﬁties are registered with the Cemn_lissio_n purSuapt' td_ Section

12(b) of the Exchange Act, and. its stock trade's on fhe New Yofk Stocl-(‘ Exchange -
(“NYSE”) under the symbols “BRK-A” for its Class A shares, and “BRK-B” for itS'Clase B

- B shares.

12.  Galleon, a Delaware limited partnerShip,. was a hedge fund investment

adviser based in New York, New Yerk. As of Mareh 2009, Galleon had over $2.6 billion



under management. Galleon was founded in 1997 and registered withthe Commission as

an investment adviser in January 2006. In the wake of the October 16, 2009‘arrest of

Rajaratnam on charges of insider trading, Galleon began to liquidate itself and the hedge

funds it advised. During the relevant period, _Galleon served as the investment adviser for

 several hedge funds, inclliding'the hedge funds that engaged in the trading described
herein. | | |
13, Goldman Sach_s is a_Delaware corporation headquartered in New York,

" New York. Goldman Sachsisa global'in.vestment banking, securities, and 'investment
vmana.gement firm that provides se_rvices to a client base that includes corpora_tions,. _
financial institutions, governments, and higli-net-wor'th individuals.- The snbsidiaries of
Goldman Sachs include broker-dealers and investment advisers registered with the . |
Commission. -Goldman Saclis-’s secnrities are registered with the Commission pur_snant
to Section 12(b) of the Exchange Actand its_ stock trades on the NYSE under the symbol
“GS.” |

14, Procter & Camble is an Ohio corporation headquartered in Cincinnati,
Ohio. 'Procte_r & Gamble is a provider of bran'ded consurmr goods products in over 180

| countri_es around the world. ,"Procte'r. & Gamble’s securities are registered with the
Commission pursuant to Section 12(b) of 'the E_xchanée Act and its stock trades on the
| NYSE under the symbol “PG.” |

A. Trad'ing in Advance of Berkshire’s $5 Billion Investment in Goldman Sachs

15. InSeptember 2008, Gupta disclosed to Raj aratnam material nonpublic

information he learned as a member of the Goldman Sachs Board of Directors concerning



Berkshire’s $5 billion inveStrnent in Goldman Sachs, yvhich was publicly announced on
September 23, 2008. Rajaratnam, in turn, caused certain‘Galleon hedge funds to trade on
the basis of the material nonpublic information that Gupta disclosed. |

16. Soon after the bankruptcy filing of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc.

(“Lehman”) on September 15, 2008 — which precipitated a sharp decline in the financial

- markets — senior management of Goldman Sachs beganbconsidering various strategic

alternatives as they tried to navigate through the ongoing financial crisis. These
alternatives included a potential investme_nt from an institutional investor like Berkshire,
and were discussed at various 'Goldman Sachs Board meeting_s -and posting calls during
the week and a half followmg Lehman s bankruptcy ﬁhng

17. Goldman Sachs executives contlnued to explore vanous strategic
alternatives the weekend after the Lehman bankruptcy._ The Goldman Sachs Board
convened a Special Meeting on Sunday, September 21, 2008. DUring that meeting,
which Gupta attended via teleconference the Board approved Goldman Sachs becommg -

a Bank Holdlng Company The Goldman Sachs Board was also updated on certain

_ strateg1c alternatwes that had been con51dered over the weekend

18. Goldman Sachs CEO Lloyd Blankfem (“Blankfem”) had a long standmg
practice of informing the Board durlng postmg calls, meetings and phone calls about the
then-current ﬁnancial status of the'ﬁrm. Goldman’s net.revenues‘ had been particularly -
strong in the week leading up to the meeting — despite the fact that the week had begun .
with Lehman’s bankruptcy and that the ﬁnancial- markets were in a general state of
turmoil. While the Board;s determination to convert Goldman Sachs into a Bank -

Holding Company was publicly disclosed on the evening of September 21 , information



concerning Goldman Sachs’s strategic aitematines and strong net revenue remained . |
COnﬁdential. |
19. i On the morning of Monday, September 22 — the day after the Sunday
et/ening' Goldman Sachs Board meeting — Gupta’s office placed a four minute c.all.to n
Rajaratnam. Shortly afterwards, Rajaratnam caused certain Galleon hedge funds he
managed to purchase over .1 00,000 Goldman Sachs shares. |
~ 20.  On the morning of September 23, Rajaratnam 'placed. acall to Gu,pta._ ‘ Less

than a minute after the call,began Raj aratnam caused the Galleon-hedge.funds to

' purchase an add1t10na1 50,000 Goldman Sachs shares

21, A Speaal Telephomc Meetmg of the Goldman Sachs Board was convened

at 3:15 'p.m. on Sept_ember 23, during which the Board consldered and appro_ved a $5_
' billion- preferred stock investrnent by_.Be'rkshire in GOldman Sachs:and a::pub'lic equitj
’ offering.' AS Gupta knew, Berkshire was a respected and inﬂu'ential in\testors and its_ '
: dec_ision to make such a latge ihtzestment in Goldrnan Sachs would be favotably viewed.
. by investors asa strong vote of conﬁdencein- the'furtl when the infOrtnation'Was‘ |
'disclosed to. the publlc Gupta part1c1pated in- the Board meetmg telephomcally, staying

connected to the call unt11 approx1mate1y 3: 53 p-m. Immedlately after dlsconnectmg

from the Board call, Gupta called Rajaratnam from the same line. Within a minute after "

that telephone conversation, at 3:56 p.m. and 3:57 p.nt;, and just nlinutes before the close .

of the ntarkets, Rajaratnam caused certain Galleon hedge funds to purchase more than .

217,200, Goldman Sachs shares (Rejaratnam had actualty attempted to purchase far more

~ shares, placing an order for 350,000). Raj atatnam later informed a co-conspirator that he _

received the information upon which he placed the trades minutes before the close.



~22. Goldman Sachs publiciy annonnced the‘ Berkshireinvestment, along with
a $2.5 billion public stock -offe_ring, after the market close on September 23. Goldman
Sachs’s stock price, which had closed at -$1»25.05’ per share on September 23, opened at
$128.44 per share the following day and rose toa'closing price that day of $'133.00 per
“share, a gain of 6.36% from the prior day’s closing price. B
| ~23.  On September 24, Rajaratnam liquidated the long position he had built in
Goldman SaChs’s shares on the afternoon of September 23, generating proﬁts of over

$800, 000

.B. Trading in Advance of Goldman Sachs’s Fourth Quarter of 2008 Fmancral
Results

- 24. Gupta also disctosed material nonpublic.information that he learned B
during a Goldman-v Sachs Board posting call about Goldman Sachs’.s' ﬁnancial'results for
the fourth quarter of ?;008_ to Rajaratnam, who caused certain Galleon funds he managed
‘to trade on the bas‘is of the inforrnati'on. | | |

25. " Goldman ‘Sachs announced negativé results for the-fourth quarter of 2008‘
on December 16, 2008 reportmg a $2 1 billion loss, the first quarterly loss that Goldman
' had sustamed asa publlcly traded company _
26. - Blankfem began to apprecrate very early in the fourth quarter of 2008 that
results were gomg to be poor. About mrd-quarter, on October 23, 2008, at 4.15 p-m.,
..Blankfein, Gdldman Sachs Chief Financral Ofﬁcer David Viniar (“Vinia.r”), band other
senior executives at Goldman Sachs conducted a Board postmg call durmg which they
mformed the Board of the company s then-current ﬁnancral situation. The da11y and

weekly profit and loss statements that Blankfein and Viniar would typically rely on as the

10



basis for their presentations to the Board showed’ that the company was then operating at
a quarter to date loss of $l 96 r)er share.

27.  Gupta _dialed into the Gctober 23, 2008,. Board posting call around the time
it was scheduled to start and remained on the call until 4't49_ p.m. Just 23 seeonds after
disconnecting fr_om the call; Gupta called Raj aratnam. The call lasted appror(imately .l 3 |
minutes. The following -rnorning,' just as the financial markets ope_ned at 9:30 am.,,
Rajaratnarn caused‘ certain Galleon hedge funds to begin Selling their holdings of |
Goldman Sachs stock. The funds ﬁnished selling off their holdlngs — which had '

, lconlsisted of 150,000 shares _ that same day at prices ranging from $97.74 to $102.17

per share. The same day (October 24, 2008) in drscussmg tradmg and market .
information w1th another co- consp1rator in the tradmg scheme RaJaratnam explalned that |
“the street” expected Goldman Sachs to earn $2. 50 per share but that RaJaratnam had
heard the prlor day from a member of the Goldman Sachs Board that the company was
actually gomg to lose $2 per share. As a result of Raj aratnam s trades on the basis of the
i 'materlal nonpubllc 1nformat10n that Gupta prov1ded Galleon hedge ﬁmds avorded losses _

of more than $3. 6 million.

C. Trading in Advance of Goldinan Sachs s for the Second Quarter of 2008
Fmanclal Results

- 28. Gupta also diSclosed to Raj aratnam material nonpuhlic information o
concerning Goldman S,achs’s-positiVe financial results for the second quarter of 2008,
which were -publiCly announced on June 17, 2008. Raj aratnam caused certain Galleon
‘fuvnds he managed to trade on the basis of that info_rmation. | |

29. 'Approrrimately one week before the earnings--.announcement, onJ tlne 10,

2008, at 5:41 p.m., Blankfein placed a call to Gupta that lasted more than 8 minutes. The
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call was one of several Blankfein made to various Goldrﬁan Sachs Directors around the
safne time that evening.' Blankfein’s practice was to apprise Directors of the then-cﬁfrenf
ﬁnanciél status of the firm when he spoké to them. -
30.  Goldman Sachs"‘s second quarter of 2008 had ended on May 30,2008. By

“June _10, 2008, Goldman SaCIZIS’é‘ ﬁnahcial,r'cportin.g 'teain had aiready, éompiléd and |
analyzed the quarterly ﬁnanc‘i‘al--d'ata and put together a draft earnings pfess release that -
had beeﬂ_ circulated to Vari_ous finance persbnnel, includ'ir_lg Viniar, prior to Blankfein’s
. call with Gupta. Th,e. ‘comiiariy’s financial perférmahée was strohg inan exftremely
difﬁcult environment, and significantly better than anal_yst qanensus estimafes.

31, Blankfe»in'k'néw "t.he earnings numbers (which were positive) and discusse'd--' B
.- them wifh Gupta dﬁﬁng thé_ir Jl;ne 10, 2008.,‘-te1‘ephone éonversation;

32 On the night of June 10, 2008, at 9:24 p.1m., Gupta placed a short call to
Rajaratnam’s home. The call was the first in a flurry of -'s.horlt_ calls betweén' the two over
an--ls;minUte span that night, _which cuiminatéd'in a 4-minute call from Raj aratnam to
- v Gupfca, at 9:42 p.m.. On the follow_ing morning, J une 11, at 8‘:43 am., Rajaratﬁafn placed

another call to G_ubta thét 1a$ted- ;cxbout 2.5 minutes. Beginning at 9:35 am., fnihuteév after
.the' mérkets opened, Raj araﬁxar_n caused _éertaiﬁ Galleon hedge fundsb. fco signiﬁpantly |
‘increase an existing long posifion,tliey-_had esta_ﬁlished in Goldman Sachs shares by |
pﬁrchasing over 7‘,350 Goldman Sa_chs June $170 ;:all option contracts (Goldman Sachs’s
share price had opened at $167.00 per éhare on June 11).
. 33.  Rajaratnam also caused :_Galleon.fl‘mds to purchase 350,000 additional
Goldman Sachs shares on June 1_1 and 12, selling only ‘a»small portion of those shares on

June 13.
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34. | On"_June 16, after a 2% run up in the price of Goldman Sachs comrnon
stock, Rajaratnam caused the Galleon hedge funds to sell the June $170 call option |
contrac’t_s they had purchased on June 11, generating profits of approximately $9.3
million. |

35,  OnlJune 17, priOr to market open, Goldman Sachs announced its quarterly
results. Revenues and earnings per share beat analysts estimates, and Goldman Sachs s

share price opened the day at $1 85.04 per share — about 1. 62% higher than the prior

~day’s closrng price of- $1 82. 09 per share After the announcement Rajaratnam caused the
Galleon funds to sell the Goldman Sachs shares they had purchased after Rajaratnam

received the materlal nonpubllc 1nformat10n from Gupta on J une 10, generatrng proﬁts of

over $9 mrlhon.
36.  The total illicit profits made by the Galleon hedge funds by virtue of their

trading on the basis of Gupta’s material nOnpublic-inforrnation concerning Goldman

‘Sachs’s second quarter of 2008 results were nearly $l8 5 million.

D. Trading in Advance of Procter & Gamble’s Second Quarter 2008 Financial
' Results

37, _Gupta also disclosed to Rajaratnam material nonpublic information that

Gupta learned as a member of Procter & Gamble’s Board of Directors about Procter &

- Gamble’s financial results for the October through December 2008 quarter (Procter &

Gamble’s second quarter). Raj aratnam then_ passed the material nonpublic information to |
‘his Galleon -.colleague_s, who then caused certain Galleon ﬁmds to trade on the basis of the
information. | |

38.  At9:00 am. on January -29,'20(.)‘9., the day before Procter & Gamble’s pre-

market quarterly earnings release was issued, Procter & Gamble’s Audit Committee, of
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 which Gupta was a member, met telephonically to discuss the planned release. ‘Gupta
 dialed into the Audit Committee meeting at its scheduled start time and remained on the

call for over 19 minutes. A draft of the earnings release, which had been mailed to Gupta

and the other committee members two days before the rneeting, stated, among other
things, that the company expected organic sales, or sales related to preexisting rather than

newly acquired business segments, to grow 2-5% in the fiscal year. This compared _

negatively to the 4-6% growth the company had previously publicly predicted

39. - Gupta called Rajaratnam in the early afternoon on J anuary 29, 2009.

Shortly afterwards, Raj aratnam adv1sed another co-conspirator_ that he had learned frorn a

" contact on Procter & Gamble’s Board that the company’s organic sales gr_ovvth,would be

* lower than expected. In the late afternoon of January 29, 2009, Galleon funds sold short

approxrmately 180,000 Procter & Gamble shares. After Procter & Gamble issued its

earmngs release in the pre—market onlJ anuary 30 (the actual release was substantlally the

_same as the draft release Gupta had been provrded) Procter & Gamble’s stock price,

whlch had closed at $58.22 per share on J anuary 29 opened on January 30 at. $56 50 per

- -share. The stock price decl1ned further to $54. 50 per share by the close on January 30,

down approxrmately 6. 39% from the prior day’s closing price.

40. By yirtu_e of their trades, which were on-the basrs of niaterial nonpublic
information that Gupta provided to Ra_jaratnam,'the Galleon funds .g_enerated illicit profits- '
of over $570,000. |

E. Gupta Had a Fiduciary Duty to Keep Confidential All Materlal Nonpublic
Information about Goldman Sachs

41.  AsaGoldman Sachs Director, Gupta had a duty to keep confidential all

material nonpublic information about Goldr_nan Sachs.
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42.  Goldman Sachs’s corporate governance guidelines in effect and applicable

to Gupta during the re’levant period provided that the proceedings and deliberations of the

Board and its committees were confidential, and that a director who had an awareness o_f

material nonpliblic information relating to the firm was prohibited from buying or selling

Goldman Sachs securities, and was proh-ibi_ted from recommending that another person
do so. Moreover, non-employee directors such as Gupta were prohibited from speaking -

on behalf of the _comp'any without consulting the Chief Executive Officer. -

F. Gupta Had a Flduclary Duty to Keep Confidential All Material Nonpubllc -

Informatron about Procter & Gamble

43. As a Procter.& Gamble Director, Gupta had a duty to keep cdnﬁdentia_l all

- materral nonpubhc mformatlon about Procter & Gamble

44, - Procter & Gamble s insider tradlng policy in effect and apphcable to

. Gupta during the relevant perrod prohrblted him from trading while in possessron of
 material nonpublic 1nforrnat10n concerning Procter & Gamble, or from conveymg that

information to others.

CLAIMS FOR RELIEF
CLAIM 1 ’
Vlolatlons of Sectlon 10(b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 Thereunder
(Agamst Both Defendants) :

45. - The Commissron realleges and mcorporates by reference paragraphs 1

'through 44 as though fully set forth herein.

| 46,. The mformatron concemmg (i) Berkshrre s September 2008 mvestment in

Goldman Sach& (ii) Goldman Sachs’s mid-fourth quarter ﬁnancial condition, (iii)

‘ Go_ldman Sachs’s financial results for the second quarter of 2008, and (iv) Procter &

‘Gamble’s January 30, 2009, earnings release, respectively, was, in each case, material
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.and nonpublic. In addition, the information was, in each case, considered Conﬁdenti'al by

the companies that were the sources of the information, and each of these companies had .
pb_licies protecting confidential infOnnatioh; |

47. G’uptg leaméd ab.out' each of the forcgoing transaétions, circumstances and
events in his capacity as a dir¢ctor of Goldﬁxaﬁ Sachs énd Procter & Gamble,
respectiveiy,whil’e subject to written policies of conﬁdentiality, and Gupta knew or.
recklessly disregafded that he owed a fiduciary duty, or obligation arising from a similar
reiationship of trust and confidence, to ke_ep-the information conﬁderitiai.

. 48. Gupta tipped the material rion-publié information to Rajaratnam with the

expectation of receiving a benéﬁt.

49, .Raja‘ratn'am knew, reckflesély diéregarded, or should have known, that the -

tips-'he received from Gupta were cbnvéye'd by Gupta in breach of Gupta’s fiduciary duty,

or similar relationship of trust and confidence.

50. By virtue of the fo_fegoing, each of the Defendants, in connection with the

- purchase or sale of 'securiﬁes’,- by the use of the means or instrumentalities of interstate

commerce; or of the mails, or a facility ofa national securities exchange, directly or
indirectly: (a) employed devices, 'Sche_mes or artifices to defraud; (b) made untrue

statements of material fact or omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make

the statements made,’in‘ the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
’misleadihg; or (c) erigaged in acts, practices or courses of business which operated or

would have operated as a fraud or deceit upon persons.
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51. By virtue of the foregoing, each of the Defendants, directly or indirectly
violated, and unless enjoined, will again violate, Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act [15
- USC.§ 78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 thereunder {17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5]. - |
- | CLAIM IL
Vlolatrons of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act
(Against Both Defendants)
52. 'The Commiission realleges and incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 |
through 51, as though fully set forth herein. |
53. | - By virtue of the foregoing, each of the Defendants, in the offer or sale of
securities relating to G‘oldman Sachs’s fourtn quarter 2008 ‘ﬁnancial' condrtioﬁ-and |
Procter & Gamble’s .secondvquarter ended December 2008, by the use of means or
instruments of tranaportation or communi¢ation in interstate commerce or by‘ the nse of
the mails, directly or indireétly: (a) employed devices, schemes or artiﬁces .to defraud; (b)
obtamed money or property by means of an untrue statement of a material fact or omitted _ '
to-state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made rn hght of the
| circumstances under which they were made not mrsleadmg, and (c) engaged in
transactlons practices or courses of business whrch operate or would operate asa fraud
or decert upon a purchaser. |
54. By reason o_f the conduct described above, each of the Defendants, directly
or indirectly violated, and unless enjoined will again violate, Section_ 17(a) of the

Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77q(a)].
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RELIEF SOUGHT

WHEREFORE, the Commuission respectfully requests that this Court enter a

Final Judgment: |
L

Permanently restraining and enjoining ea_ch of the Defendants, a_n(i his ‘o‘fﬁcers,'
' agents, servants, employees, aﬁd attorneys, and those_ persons in acﬁve vco"ncert or
perticipatien with them who receives actual notice of the ,inju_nctioﬁ_ by personal serviee
or otherwiee, and_ﬂ-each_of therﬁ? from violatingb Section 10(-5) of the Exchange Act [15
U.S.C. § 78_j(b)], and Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17 C.F.R. § 240. l'Ob-HS].; k

| | IL |

Permanently re_straining.and enjoinirig each of the Deferidants; his officers,
agents, Sefvants, employees, and-attorﬁeys, and tﬁose pérSon‘s in aetive eoncert or
participation with‘ them who rece_ive'actual notice of the injunction by personal service or
otheMse, and each of them, from ‘violatingr‘Sectioﬁ 17(a) of the Secpﬁties Aet.[15 :
U.S.C. §§ 77q(a)]; |
| L |

'drdering each of the'Defendants to disgorge,: with prejudgrﬁen'tinterest, jointly :
and severally, all illicit trading profits, other ill-gotten gains received,‘andlqr losses
avoided as a result of the conduct alleged in ﬁﬁs Cemplaint; B ‘.

N IV
- Ordeﬁng each Defendant to pay civil monetary penalties pursuant to Section_ 21A

of the Exchange Act [15U.S.C. § 78u-1];
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| V.

Bé.rrihg Gupta pursuant to Section 20(e) of tﬁe Sequrities Act[15U.S.C.§ TTi(e)] -
aﬁd Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act [1-5 U.S.C.‘§ 78u(d)(2)] from acting as an
officer or director Qf any issuer that hés a class of securities 'registered pursuant to Segtioh '
12 of the Exchange Act [15 'U.S.C_. § 781] or that is required to f_11eb reports pursuant to
Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 780(d)]: |

VI
Permanently restraining and enjoining Gupta from associating with any erker,

dealer, or investment adviser; and
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-VIL.

‘Granting such other and further relief as this Court may deem just and proper.

Dated: New York, New York
October 26, 2011

Gpdrge S/ Canellos
Regional Director
Attorney for Plaintiff
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COMMISSION -
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3 World Financial Center, Suite 400
New York, New York 10281-1022
(212) 336-1020
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David Rosenfeld (RosenfeldD@sec.gov)
Sanjay Wadhwa (WadhwaS@sec.gov)
Valerie Szczepanik (SzczepanikV@sec.gov)
Kevin McGrath (McGrathK@sec.gov)

John Henderson (HendersonJ@sec.gov)
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